SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 1, 2012
9:00 a.m

9:00: 38 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stednman called the Senate Finance Committee
meeting to order at 9:00 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co-Chair
Senat or Bert Stednan, Co-Chair
Senator Lesil McQiire, Vice-Chair
Senator Johnny Ellis

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Joe Thomas

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Senator Kevin Meyer; Brenda Sheldon, President, Al aska
Athletic Trainers Association; Christopher Dean, Athletic
Trai ner; Don Habeger, Director, Corporations, Business, and
Prof essional Licensing; Jim Puckett, Director, Division of
Retirenent and Benefits; Aaron Danielson, Public Safety
Enpl oyee Association; Chris Gfford, Minicipal Chapter
President, Public Safety Enployee Association; Derek Hsiel,
Anchorage Police Departnent Enployee Association; FEric
Tuott, Anchorage Firefighters; Mirray Richnond, Staff,
Senator Joe Thomas; John Alcantra, Governnment Relations,
Nat i onal Education Associ ati on, Al aska; Linda Hall,
Di rector, Division of Insurance; Christine Marasigan,
Staff, Senator Kevin Meyer

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Larry Senmens, City Mnager, City of Soldotna; Ron Thorpe,
President and CEO, National Board for Professional Teaching
Standards, Washington DC Pete Lew s, Superi nt endent ,
Fai rbanks North Star Borough School District; Tamy Snith,



Fai rbanks Education Association; Stephen MDaniel, Asurion
Fl ori da

SUMVARY

SB 38 Police and Firefighter Death Benefits
SB 38 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

SB 83 Teacher Board Certification |Incentives
SB 83 was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for further
consi derati on.

SB 115 Portabl e El ectroni cs | nsurance

SB 115 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

SB 119 At hl etic Trainer Licensing

SB 119 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

#sb119
SENATE BILL NO. 119

"An Act relating to the licensing and regulation of
athletic trainers.”

9:01: 37 AM

SENATOR KEVIN MEYER, introduced SB 119. He explained that
athletic trainers were certified, health care professionals
who practice in the field of sports nedicine. The
profession played a significant role in the managenent,
preventi on, recognition and rehabilitation of injured
athletes under the supervision of a |icense physician. As
peopl e becane increasingly nore active, athletic trainers
were a vital resource in adm nistering inmrediate energency
care as well as injury prevention and treatnent.

BRENDA  SHELDON, PRESI DENT, ALASKA  ATHLETIC  TRAI NERS
ASSCClI ATI ON, spoke in support of SB 119. She noted that
Alaska was one of three states that did not |icense
athletic trainers. She explained that athletic trainer

Senat e Finance Committee 2 02/01/12 9:00 A M



clients ranged from athletes to industrial workers. She
noted that athletic trainers were often the first to
respond in the cases of injuries.

Ms. Shel don explained that SB 119 would require everyone in
Al aska who considered thenselves athletic trainers to be
licensed. She explained that she was an athletic trainer,
and shared her personal feelings about the inportance of SB
119.

9:07: 06 AM

CHRI STOPHER DEAN, ATHLETIC TRAINER, testified in support of
SB 119. He explained that SB 119 would ensure quality
medi cal care for the athletes in Al aska. He stressed that
sonme parents had becone dependent on athletic trainers.

Co-Chair Stedman noted the new fiscal inpact note from
Depart ment of Commerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent,
and a new zero fiscal note from the Departnment of
Adm ni stration.

Senator Thomas wondered if the initial Ilicensing fee of
$900 would be covered in the bill. Senator Myer replied
that the $900 could possibly be covered by the state. He
hoped to di scuss reasons why the |icensing was so high.

Senat or Thomas agreed that the fee was very high.

DON  HABEGER, DI RECTOR, CORPORATI ONS, BUSI NESS, AND
PROFESSI ONAL LI CENSI NG, explained that the licensing fee
was high, because it was expensive to install a program
into the system He stressed that once the system was
i npl enented, the program would be conplete with application
accessibility. He stated that there was a belief that the
program coul d easily get absorbed into the existing staff.

9:14: 49 AM

Senat or Thomas wondered if the cost was high because there
were a small nunber of individuals who were interested in
applying. He felt it could be a sinple inplenentation. M.
Habeger replied that it was a statutory requirenent to
charge the user fees in inplenentation. He stressed that
the fee was |l egitimate.

Senat e Finance Committee 3 02/01/12 9:00 A M



Senat or Thonas wondered how many people were anticipated to
be licensed. M. Habeger replied that there was no way he
could predict that nunber, but relied on the Athletic
Trai ner Association to provide that nunber.

Senator O son wondered if there was a licensing board that
woul d have a small nunber of |icensees. M. Habeger noted
that a simlar program was the Mdw fe Board, and their
bi enni al program fee was about $2000.

Senator O son wondered if there was a process to pay for
the investigator to deal with the conplaint. M. Habeger
noted that there were recent discussions regarding the Real
Estat e Conm ssion, and those costs could spike.

Senator M@uire wondered how the school districts would
intersect into the program She wondered if the costs would
be passed on to the school district. Senator Meyer deferred
to a school district enployee.

Senator MCQuire restated that she was concerned with the
costs for the school districts. M. Dean replied that
currently no school district in Al aska enployed athletic
trainers. He stressed that the school districts in
Fai r banks were hi ghly dependent on benefactors.

9:21:44 AM

M. Dean noted that mdw ves had a board, but the athletic
trainers do not have a board. He felt that athletic
trainers could be better conpared with nutritionists.

Senator Egan wondered if the fees would increase if there
was an investigation regarding licensing issues. M.
Habeger replied that the division had an investigative unit
that was responsible for any violation of Title A |If
investigators determ ned that there was a violation, then a
process occurred with the possibility for many different
outconmes. He stressed that nost of the tine there were |ow
cost issues, but if there was a legal process then the
Depart ment of Law woul d be invol ved.

Senator Egan wondered if there would be background checks
for people that applied for |icenses. M. Habeger replied
that if the applicant remained current with the national
organi zation, then the applicant would be eligible for a
state |icense.

Senat e Finance Committee 4 02/01/12 9:00 A M



9:27: 07 AM

Senator dson noted that M. Dean had declared that
athletic trainers were nore |ike nutritionists than
m dwi ves, and wondered if M. Habeger agreed wth that
assunption. M. Habeger did not know the specifics of the
Nutritionist program He noted that Naturopaths had a fee
of $400, and did not have a board.

Senator O son wondered what penalties would be incurred if
the license were suspended. Senator Meyer replied that the
| i censees were overseen by the National Board.

Senator A son noted that there was an issue of diagnosing
and treatnent. He expressed concern that athletic trainers
were not authorized to practice nedicine. Senator Meyer
stressed that there were specific requirenents for people
that call thenselves athletic trainers. He also stressed
that they were not going to practice nedicine. He stated
that he did not know how the bill would apply to rural
areas, but agreed to provide that information.

SB 119 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#sb38
SENATE BILL NO. 38

"An Act establishing a one-tine occupational death
benefit for peace officers and firefighters."

9:33:16 AM

Senator Meyer stated that SB 38 would provide a one-tine
paynent of $100,000 occupational death benefit established
in Section 2 of the draft bill. It would provide that the
paynent nmay not be nade to anyone but a surviving spouse of
a dependent child of a peace officer. He stressed that the
death of a peace officer was fairly rare in Al aska. He
noted several letters of support. He noted that the average
age of a peace officer who dies in the Iine of duty was 38-
years-old. He stressed that the bill was especially
i nportant, because the officer may have small children that
needed financial support.

Senat e Finance Committee 5 02/01/12 9:00 A M



Co- Chair Hof fman wondered what other states prograns were
in conmparison to this bill. Senator Meyer stated that each
state had different progranms. CHRI STINE MARASI GAN, STAFF,
SENATOR KEVIN MEYER, stated that 39 other states provided
simlar benefit. She said the benefit ranged from $25, 000
to $400, 000.

Senator Egan requested an explanation of the fiscal note's
continual increase over tine. M. Mirasigan noted that
there was sone information required related to liability.
She stressed that there was some actuary liability studies.
Senat or Meyer added that there was anticipation of one
deat h per year.

9: 38:49 AM

Senator A son | ooked at the pension fund, and wondered if
the peace officers wuld be required to pay higher
i nsurance because of the potential of nore deaths. Senator
Meyer believed that the noney would be used from the
unfunded liability, meaning that the noney was already
avai | abl e.

Senator O son wondered if there were other death benefits
for officers that die in the line of duty. Senator Meyer
replied that there were some life insurance benefits.

JIM PUCKETT, DI RECTOR, DI VISI ON OF RETI REMENT AND BENEFI TS,
i ntroduced hi nsel f.

Co-Chair Stedman wondered what the tier 4 enployees’
benefits would be. M. Puckett replied that they would
recei ve the DCR bal ance.

Co-Chair Stedman surm sed that the benefit would be zero
M. Puckett agreed to provide nore information regarding
tier 4 enployee benefits.

Co-Chair Stedman requested information regarding the
structure of the tier 4 benefits, because he would like to
| ook at the conparative differences between a new enpl oyee
and one that had been enployed for 20 years. M. Puckett
explained that if there was a loss of life due to accident
on the job, there would be a life insurance benefit of
$100, 000 and the Supplenental Benefit System (SBS). He
stated that he would provide further information regarding
new enpl oyees.

Senat e Finance Committee 6 02/01/12 9:00 A M



Senator (O son wondered when the benefits would begin
followng the death. M. Puckett replied that basic life
i nsurance would occur inmediately, and the check would be
di scl osed within a week follow ng the incident.

9:44: 21 AM

Co-Chair Stedman requested witten information in grid-form
regarding the tier system benefits and structures. M.
Puckett agreed to provide that information.

Senat or Egan wondered if it there was an assunption of one
death per vyear, when the calculations were nmade. M.
Puckett replied that the one death per year was the basis
of the cal cul ation.

Senat or Egan wondered how the unfunded liability increased
$650, 000. M . Pucket t requested further i nformation
regarding Senator Egan's reference of $650,000. Co-Chair
Stedman stated that it was in the Buck Analysis, second
par agraph |ast sentence. He felt that the accumul ation of
expenditures was added to the negative side of the bal ance
sheet .

Co- Chair Stedman wondered who picked up the tab: the city
or the state. He explained that the state would be required
to provide the funds, because the cities were capped at 22
percent. He felt that there would be a broader discussion
related to that topic.

AARON  DANI ELSON, PUBLI C SAFETY EMPLOYEE  ASSCCI ATI ON,
testified in support of SB 38. He felt that the bill
addressed the famlies of the officer greatest concern. He
poi nted out that the bill would provide peace of m nd.

9:49:34 AM

CHRIS G FFORD, MJNI Cl PAL CHAPTER PRESI DENT, PUBLIC SAFETY
EMPLOYEE ASSQOCI ATI ON, spoke in support of SB 38. He
stressed the inportance of the benefit of the famlies of
the officers.

DEREK HSI EL, ANCHORAGE POLI CE DEPARTIVENT EMPLOYEE
ASSCCI ATION, testified in support of SB 38. He focused on
the reality of death in the line of duty. He pointed out
that training for death was a requirenent for peace

Senat e Finance Committee 7 02/01/12 9:00 A M



of ficers. The training was used to inoculate the
understanding of death. He pointed out that when officers
were killed in the line of duty, the work for the day
continued. He stressed that death was expensive, and
sonmetinmes there were extra costs incurred by the famly. He
stressed that sonetinmes business contributions off-set
costs, but smaller communities m ght not have that benefit.

9:54:10 AM

Senator MQuire noted that $100,000 nmight not be a
substanti al anmpbunt of noney. She wondered if there were any
schol arship opportunities for dependents. She hoped there
may be a possibility for a four-year scholarship for an in
state college for children. M. Hsiel pointed out sone
benefits in the mlitary. He felt that the added benefits
woul d be left to the legislature's discretion.

Senat or McGQuire requested nore information regarding
schol arships, and noted a summary of the record of peace
officer deaths in Alaska. She also would like to see a
scholarship benefit possibility. Co-Chair Stedman noted
that those requests should be directed at the bill sponsor
and the Departnent of Public Safety.

9:59:14 AM

ERI C TUOTT, ANCHORAGE FI REFI GHTERS, testified in support of
SB 38. He stated that he was married with a three-year-old
daughter, so his famly would be greatly affected if he was
killed in the line of duty. He stressed that deaths did not
happen frequently, but did occur occasionally.

LARRY SEMMENS, CITY MANAGER, CTY OF SOLDOTNA (via
tel econference), testified against SB 38. He stressed that
the enployees were already covered by occupational death
benefits. If SB 38 passed, He thought it was a poor tine to
add benefits that would increase the unfunded liability. He
indicated we should be working to reduce the unfunded
liability, and not add benefits.

Co-Chair Stedman pointed out the new fiscal inpact note
from the Departnent of Administration, for a zero-cost in
FY 2013. However, the there was an anticipated $175,000
general fund increase in the annual enployer contribution
anount beginning in FY 2014, with increnental increases in

Senat e Finance Committee 8 02/01/12 9:00 A M



the following years. He stressed that there would be an
i npact on the unfunded liability.

10: 07: 23 AM

Senator O son wondered what comunity contribution would
be. Senator Meyer replied that the local contribution was
currently 22 percent.

Senator McCuire referenced Title 14.43. 085.
Senat or Meyer thanked the commttee.

SB 38 was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for further
consi derati on.

10: 09: 33 AM
AT EASE

10: 13: 39 AM
RECONVENED

#sb83
SENATE BI LL NO 83

"An Act providing for paynent and loan incentives to
public school t eachers for nat i onal board
certification."”

10:14: 16 AM

Senator Thomas explained SB 83. He referred to the Sponsor
Statenent (copy on file):

Teaching is one of the nost difficult and inportant
jobs we have in our society. In order to have good
school s, we nust have good teachers.

Senate Bill 83 provides an incentive for teachers to
ranp up their professional know edge and skills by
becomi ng nationally certified by the National Board of
Prof essi onal Teaching Standards. Teachers would be
provided with zero interest |oans designed to pay the
expense of enrolling in the program Once certified
they would receive a $1,000 annual stipend for the
duration of their certification period (ten years).

Senat e Finance Committee 9 02/01/12 9:00 A M



If the teacher is serving in a |low performng, high
poverty area they would receive a $1,000 stipend for
enrolling in the program and $1,500 |loan for the rest
of the expense. They would also receive an additiona

$500 annually as long as they remained in a |ow
perform ng, high poverty area.

Becomng nationally certified is a rigorous and
demandi ng process, and can take up to three years.
There are 25 different areas of certification (see
page 7 of the packet), and teachers specialize in
their specific subject area. The certification process
focuses on five aspects of teaching: Students and
their learning, the subjects being taught and how to
teach them rmanaging and nonitoring student | earning,
thinking systematically about t he practice  of
t eachi ng, and being nenbers of the |earning community.

We appreciate your support on this inportant bill.

MURRAY RI CHMOND, STAFF, SENATOR JOE THOMAS, explained SB 83
further. He stressed that the board was nationally
recogni zed, and noted that certification was a rigorous
t hree-year process. He expl ained the sections of the bill.

10: 19: 26 AM

Co-Chair Stedrman noted the new zero fiscal note from the
Department of Education and Early Developnent for the
Comm ssion on Post-secondary Education and the new fiscal
inmpact note from the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent for Teachi ng and Learni ng Support.

RON  THORPE, PRESI DENT AND CEQ, NATI ONAL  BOARD FOR
PROFESSI ONAL TEACHI NG  STANDARDS, WASHI NGTON DC (via
tel econference), testified 1in support of SB 83. He
explained that the board was at the forefront of high
guality teaching education. He felt that board nenbership
woul d provide peace of mnd to parents. He enphasized that
board certification standards were very high. He stressed
that students who were taught by board-certified teachers
di spl ayed hi gher test scores.

10: 24: 42 AM

M. Thorpe discussed the national board certified teachers
in Alaska. He stated that there were currently 135 Nati onal

Senat e Finance Committee 10 02/01/12 9:00 A M



Board Certified teachers in Alaska, with over 40 percent
teaching in Anchorage and 20 percent in Fairbanks. He
stressed that the nunber of certified teachers represented
only 1.5 percent of the Al aska K-12 workforce. He stressed
that the nunber of certified teachers was grow ng rapidly.
He explained that in Decenber 2011, there were 14 new
Al aska teachers who had wearned their national board
certification. He explained that if a group of teachers
could pursue the certification together.

M. Thorpe shared a story about a rural school in New
Mexi co. He stated that in 2009, the school had never net
federal standards. He stated that in 2009, a nationally
certified teacher was hired as the principal, and the
school gained 9 percent in math and 5 percent in reading,
which resulted in the school neeting federal standards.

PETE LEW S, SUPERI NTENDENT, FAI RBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH
SCHOOL DI STRICT (via teleconference), testified in support
of SB 83.

10: 30: 22 AM

TAMW  SM TH, FAI RBANKS EDUCATI ON  ASSOCI ATION  (via
t el econference), spoke in support of SB 83.

JOHN ALCANTRA, GOVERNMENT RELATIONS, NATI ONAL EDUCATI ON
ASSCCI ATI ON, ALASKA, spoke in support of SB 83. He noted
that 400 National Education Association (NEA) del egates
gathered to profess support of SB 83. He explained that the
state of Wonming has a $4000 annual stipend for National
Board certification for its teachers.

10: 36: 33 AM

Senator (O son wondered what if national «certification
affected drop-out rates. M. Alcantra agreed to provide
that i nformation.

Senator O son wondered what positive inpacts would occur
with national certification. M. Alcantra replied that
there was evidence of higher benchmark test scores and
students advanci ng by one year.

Senat or A son wondered how many teachers in private school s
were nationally certified. M. Alcantra did not know.

Senat e Finance Committee 11 02/01/12 9:00 A M



Co-Chair Hoffrman noted the two fiscal notes attached to SB
83: one new fiscal inpact note from the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent, and one new zero fiscal
note from the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent .

SB 83 was HEARD and HELD in conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

#sb115
SENATE BILL NO. 115

"An Act defining portable electronics insurance and
authorizing the director of insurance to issue a
l[imted producer license to a person that sells
portabl e el ectronics insurance.”

10:41:12 AM
AT EASE

10:43:27 AM
RECONVENED

10:43: 32 AM

Senator Egan explained SB 115. He referred to the Sponsor
Statenent (copy on file):

As cell phones, tablet conputers and other portable
el ectronic devices proliferate and becone necessary to
commerce and communication, insurers have begun to
create products to cover the |loss or damage of these
valuable and inportant possessions. Because nost
el ectronic devices are sold through retailers who are
not usually in the insurance business, and because nost
portable electronics insurance is sold where the
devices are purchases, wthout regulation wldly
di vergent standards have evolved under which these
policies are sold. There is at present a chaotic market
for such insurance.

Under these circunstances, the possibility exists that
less well capitalized, or |less scrupulous, conpanies
may not survive in the marketplace or otherw se may not
be able to make good on their promses. Simlarly,
sal es personnel working for vendors of electronic
devices may not understand these products well enough
to explain them to custonmers, and they nmay well not
understand the disclosure |aws under which sellers of
i nsurance nust operate, |eaving consuners vul nerable to
liabilities they do not fully conprehend.

Senat e Finance Committee 12 02/01/12 9:00 A M



To guard against the excesses of a marketplace
frontier, reputable conpanies seek regulation that
protects both the custoner and the reputation of the
products being marketed. SB 116 seeks to provide both
sellers and buyers the confidence to enter the nmarket
for portable electronics insurance--buyers that the

product wll be both appropriate and dependable,
sellers that their products will be trusted and sought
after.

Senat or O son wondered if ot her states had simlar
| egi sl ati on Senator Egan replied yes.

Co-Chair Stednman noted the one zero fiscal note from
Depart ment of Commrerce, Conmunity and Econom ¢ Devel opnent.

STEPHEN MCDANI EL, ASURION, FLORIDA (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 115. He explained that the
| egi sl ati on woul d protect consuners.

10: 46: 39 AM

LI NDA HALL, DI RECTOR, DI VI SION OF | NSURANCE, i ntroduced
hersel f.

Co-Chair Stedman requested the thoughts, concerns, and
perspective of the Division of Insurance. Ms. Hall replied
that the division did not introduce the bill. She explained
that the division had agreed to |license the vendor to have
the limted producer |icense, and the enployees would be
able to sell and train. She explained that there were
requi renents of the vendor to keep a list of the enployees
that were selling the insurance.

10: 49: 00 AM

Senator MQire wondered who was excluded from the
mar ket pl ace. Ms. Hall felt that the bill would not be a
barrier to entry. She stated that it would streamine the
process for anyone who wanted to sell a product that would
directly inpact consuners.

Senat or Egan thanked the conmtt ee.

SB 115 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

Co-Chair Stedman expl ained the follow ng day's agenda.

#

ADJ QURNIVENT
10: 50: 42 AM

Senat e Finance Committee 13 02/01/12 9:00 A M



The neeting was adjourned at 10:50 AM

Senat e Finance Committee 14 02/01/12 9:00 A M



